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COMPLAINT

I- INTRODUCTION

The Hartf01 · nark public housing project ("Hartford

Park") is a 748 unit public housing development located in the

City of Providence, and has been operated as public housing since

its opening in 1953. The Housing Authority of the City of

Providence (PHA) has failed to adequately maintain thes· units

for at least five years prior to th· filing of the demolition,

application* Specifically, th· PHA failed to fill vacancies in

these unit* as they arose, thus enabling th· vacant units to



become vandalized and occupied by unauthorized inhabitants and"

subjectingtth· residents of Hartford Park to increased fire and

security risks and maintenance problems/ in this action

plaintiff challenges the proposed demolition of 3 high-rise

buildings at Hartford Park which collectively contain 240 units

("high-rises"), and the proposed construction of replacement

units on unapproved "scattered sites" in the City of Providence,

as violative of the United States Housing Act, the federal Fair

Housing Act, the National Environmental Policy Act and the United

States Constitution. Plaintiff also challenges the decision

changing the siting of a shelter for the homeless by the

Providence Community Action Program ("Pro-CAP") from the Elmwood

neighborhood of Providence to Hartford Park as violative of the

federal Fair Housing Act.

II. JURISDICTION

2. This Court has jurisdiction pursuant to 28 U.S.C. 51331

and 28 U.S.C. §1343(3).

III. PARTIES

3. Project B.A.S.I.C. is an unincorporated association of

tenants and advocates, active in a wide range of housing and

other issues affecting the low-income and minority community,

both in Providence and throughout the State of Rhode Island, one

of its components is the Project B.A.S.I.C. Tenants Union, which

focuses particularly on housing issues.



Project B.A.S.I.C· devotes much of its resources to,

expandìn9reiMl preserving low income housing and extending the

ranges ot choices that are available to minority tenants*- i.e..

opening up areas of the city of Providence and the State of Rhode-

Island which do not presently have housing opportunities for

minority and low income families/ Project B.A.S.I.C. has been

active in opposing both the demolition of the high-rises at

Hartford Park and the manner in which the planning of the

location of replacement units on scattered sites has not included

large areas of the City of Providence.

4. Defendant Jack F. Kemp is the Secretary of the United-

States Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). Kemp

(the Secretary) is responsible for the carrying out of all

responsibilities imposed on the federal agency by Congress and

the Constitution. In the context of demolition of the high-

rises, these responsibilities arise particularly from the U.S.

Housing Act, 42 u.s.c. §l437p, the Fair Housing Act, 42 U.3.c.

§3608 and the National Environmental Policy Act, 42 U.S.C. §4321.

In this complaint the term ••Secretary" may include the present

Secretary, Mr. Kemp, and his predecessor, Samuel Pierce.

5. The United States Department of Housing and Urban

Development. (HUD.) is an agency of the United States authorized

and directed to carry out the responsibilities imposed by

Congress and the Constitution. See paragraph 4, sjiEia. Its

principal office is in Washington, D.C.

6. Stephen J. O·Rourke is the Executive Director of the



Housing Authority of th· City of Provid·nc· (PHA)• His offic· is

located afe 100 Broad street, Providence, Rhode island 02903. H ·

is charged-withcarrying out all legal obligations imposed on the

PHA by th· U.S. Housing Act, Titl· VIII of th· Civil Rights Act

of 1968, and other statutory mandates. At all relevant times he

has acted under color of state law. *

7. WStki8mmkmt.Authority of the City of Providence (PHA)

is a public housing authority as defined in 42 U.S.C. §1437, duly

created pursuant to R.I.G.L. §45-25-1 et seq. Its principal

office is located at 100 Broad Street, Providence, Rhode Island

02903. It owns and operates the Hartford Park public housing

project. At all relevant times, the PHA has acted under color of

state law.

8. Tl·fe city of Providence (The Cityÿ is a municipality

created pursuant to state law, which acts through, inter alia,

its Mayor, its Redevelopment Authority and its Planning

Department. The City also has official involvement with the PHA,

see R.I.G.L. §45-25-1 et seq, although the PHA is also a separate

legal entity. At all relevant times, the City has acted under

color of state law:

9. 35to«tøOKid·iM· Community Action Program (Pro-CAP) is a

duly incorporated entity, operating in the City of Providence,

which, i¾tter alia, is funded to develop a shelter or shelters for

homeless persons and families within the City. Its principal

office is located at 77 Washington Street, Providence, Rhode

Island 02903. The City, as in th· case of the PHA, has official



invplvement vith Pro-CAP, through its Board of Directors. At all

relevant timmu, Pro-CAP has acted under color of stat· law.

IV. FACTS

A. DEMOLITION OF HARTFORD PARK HIGH-RISES

10. In 1986 th· PHA applied for $32,000,000 to modernize

Hartford Park through the Comprehensive Improvement Assistance

Program (CIAP) for Fiscal Year 1986, administered by the Unit·d

States Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD).

According to the "Management Review Report and Improvement Plan"

dated April 27, 1987, commissioned by the PHA and prepared by The

McHenry Company Inc. ("McHenry Report"), seø Appendix, at 1,7,

HUD rejected this application for modernization funds for

Hartford Park, as the PHA lacked a satisfactory plan to assure

the continued viability of Hartford Park.

11. On March 20, 1987 the PHA submitted its Preliminary

CIAP Application for Fiscal Year 1987. This application included

funds in the amount of $5,740,390 for comprehensive and emergency

modernization of all high-rise units at Hartford Park. The

application contained a certification from the PHA·s Executive

Director that "the PHA has determined that the proposed . . .

(modernization is financially feasible and will result in long

term physical and social viability at the project." S3* Appendix

at 17, 34-75 (bottom of each page). Moreover, the PHA noted in

it's cover letter that "th· enclosed application is based on the



assumption that the proposed comprehensive modernization of each

project will assure each project's long-term viability." £ej|

Appendix at 17. The cover letter further stated that the PHA

"expects to subsequently amend this Preliminary Application to

propose demolition of portions of Hartford Park as an alternative

to modernization if it is determined that modernization will not

assure its long term viability." The Preliminary CIAP

application also described the PHA's modernization priorities.

Regarding Hartford Park the PHA stated: "The buildings are

structurally sound, but, unless action is taken immediately to

arrest and reverse the deteriorization to the site, buildings and

units, and to improve the quality of life in the development,

this valuable housing resource will be lost to the low income

residents of Providence.11 Se¢ Appendix at 17, 19.

12. Prior to submitting the Preliminary CIAP Application,

the PHA notified the Tenant Association Presidents in a memo

dated March 12, 1987, of the PHA·s intent to submit an

application under CIAP to obtain funds for modernization and

management improvements. See Appendix at 76-77. The notice did

not identify those projects to be modernized, nor was any mention

of demolition of any public housing development mentioned in this

notice.

13. In response to newspaper articles discussing the

possibility of demolishing the high-rise units at Hartford Park,

plaintiff requested that the PHA and HUD (by letters of April 1,

1987 to the PHA and April 2, 1987 to the Providence HUD office,



respectively, sjee. Appendix at 78 and 79) convene public hearings

on demolition of Hartford Park. The PHA never replied to this

request. On April 8, 1987 HUD replied to plaintiff's letter, and

indicated that it is the PHA·s responsibility to "comply with the

statutory and other requirements for public notice and comment on

such a proposal.1* See Appendix at 80.

14. On April 10, 1987, th· PHA submitted to HUD an

application for development of 360 units of public housing to be

built on sites scattered throughout the City of Providenoe See

Appendix at 81-107. Attached to that application was a

"Statement of Intent to Make Application for the Demolition of

Public Housing Units'* which stated that the PHA would amend its

CIAP application to "specify the demolition of the four high-rise

structures as an alternative to their rehabilitation if it is

determined that they would be non-viable even if rehabilitated1*.

See Appendix at 81, 105. The statement also contained

certifications by the PHA's Executive Director that:

a. "(U)nless units proposed for demolition are replaced,

the Authority would have inadequate relocation resources for

current tenants . .";' and

b. "(B)oth as a relocation resource and as a substitution

for units lost as a result of demolition, housing vouchers

cannot b· used in lieu of new construction due to an

insufficient supply of appropriate, available units within

the City of Providence.1*

15. Sometime in 1986 or early 1987, the PHA contracted



with th· McHenry Company (McHenry) to assist the PHA in preparing

its preliminary CIAP application. On April 27, 1987 McHenry

issued a report entitled "Management Review Report and

Improvement Plan: The Providence Housing Authority", in which

three options for the future of Hartford Park were identified:

a. demolition of one or more of the high-rise buildings;

b. restoration of the development as is; or

c. sealing off the upper floors of the high-rises.

See Appendix at 1, 11. McHenry did not make any recommendation

for the future use of Hartford Park, but noted that the PHA must

"provide more secure lobby areas and increased management

presence."

16. On June 3, 1987, the Board of Cominissioners of the PHA

passed resolution number 3649, over the objection of plaintiff

and the president of the Hartford Park Tenants Association. See

Appendix at 108-09. Resolution 3649 called for the demolition of

three out of four high-rise buildings containing a combined total

of 240 units at Hartford Park. The three high-rises buildings

were:

a. 12 Bodell Avenu· (90 units, all vacant as of 10/13/87)

b. 375 Hartford Avenue (60 units, partially vacant)

c. 22 Whelan Road (90 units, partially vacant)

17. On Jun· 11, 1987 the PHA submitted a revised

Preliminary CIAP Application for Fiscal Year 1987. S_£fi Appendix

at 110-138. This revised application included funds for the

modernization of all high-ris· units at Hartford Park. In an
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attachment to th· revised application entitled Project Viability

Test, ttM*,IUk stated that the estimated modernization cost of

rehabilitating the high-rise buildings at Hartford Park did not

exceed the HUD established prototype cost limit by 40%. sea

Appendix at 116-17. Further, the Project Viability Test stated

that the proposed modernization (i.e. rehabilitation of the high-

rises) would both (i) correct any physical deficiencies that

currently render the high-rises obsolete as to physical

condition, and (ii) assure Hartford Park's long term viability,

i.e. that it would be suitable for operation as public housing

for a period of at least 20 years. Finally, in a cover letter

accompanying the revised Preliminary CIAP application, the PHA

stated that it expected to withdraw the portion of the revised

application pertaining to Hartford Park if the PHA's development

application for replacement scattered site units is approved.

See Appendix at 110.

18. On or about June 24, 1987 the PHA, by its Executive

Director, informed the Providence HUD office that "the estimated

cost of modernizing the three high-rise structures slated for

demolition/disposition exceeds the demolition costs by

$2,380,146. 3A« Appendix at 139. Based on the PHA·s request

for $2,079,000 on August 20, 1987 for demolishing three high-

rises, the cost for modernizing the three high-rises was

$4,459,146.

19. On or about July 1, 1987 plaintiff made a Request for

Information to the PHA regarding the Disposition of the Hartford



Park high-rises. £âA Appendix at 142. Plaintiff requested

copies o£̄  *·ll documentation, feasibility studies and

correspondence that indicates the social and physical unviability

(sic) of the towers." Plaintiff also restated its opposition to

the demolition of the high-rises, and again requested a public

hearing before any final decision on the high-rises was made.

20. The PHA placed an advertisement in th· July 9, 1987

issue of the Providence Journal soliciting "letters of interest

from non-profit and for profit organizations on the potential

use" of 240 units at Hartford Park that PHA sought to demolish or

dispose of. See Appendix at 143.

21. In response to the advertisement placed by the PHA

plaintiff sent a letter to the PHA on July 13, 1987, urging the

PHA to only consider and approve those proposals received by the

PHA in response to said advertisement which reclaim the high-rise

towers for their original use: public housing. See Appendix at

144. Further, plaintiff made note of the lack of tenant

participation in the demolition/disposition application proc···.

22. On July 16, 1987 the PHA replied to plaintiff's lett·r

of July 13, and stated that the ••PHA doesn't have plans to

renovat· or reuse the (high-rise) buildings for our own use."

Sea Appendix at 145. Further, the PHA noted that it disagreed

with plaintiff's contention that the PHA failed to follow the

mandated tenant participation requirements. Finally, the letter

noted that the replacement units for the demolished units at

Hartford Park "will be designed with their neighborhood in aind".

10



23. Th· Hartford Park Tenants Association submitted a

proposal tc* th· PHA regarding the use of the high-rise buildings

at Hartford Park on August 26, 1987. Sjaa Appendix at 146-157.

First, the Tenants Association recommended that there be no

demolition of any high-rise buildings at Hartford Park due to the

"dire need for low income housing that now exists."

Alternatively, the Tenants Association recommended that two of

the high-rise buildings be demolished (12 Bode11 Avenue and 10

Whelan Road), and that 30 replacement units b· constructed on the

site of each demolished building, totalling 60 units. The second

recommendation was conditioned on a number of factors, including

adequate tenant participation.

24. The PHA submitted its final application for the Major

Reconstruction of Hartford Park under CIAP on August 20, 1987.

See Appendix at 158-184. The PHA sought funds in the amount of

$16,647,595 for improvements to Hartford Park, including

$2,079,000 for the demolition of three high-rise buildings.

25. After receiving the final application from the PHA, the

HUD Field Office in Providence reviewed and recommended approval

of the MROP application. The recommendation was contained in an

undated document entitled "FY 1987 Development Funds for Major

Reconstruction of Obsolete Projects Review Sheet" (MROP Project

Review Sheet). See Appendix at 185-86. The recommendation for

approval was made despite the Field Office's finding contained in

the MROP Project Review Sheet that the PHA had minimal management

capability and minimal modernization capability.

11



26. In an attachment to the MROP Project Review Sheet

entitled "Factors Contributing to Project Obsolescence1*, the HUD

Field Offioe> found that the high-rises were obsolete, due to the

design of the units and the concentration of low income families

that would result from the renovation of the high-rises, see

Appendix at 185-187. This finding contradicts the finding of a

1984 design consultant referred to in the attachment, who found

that "any approach to rehabilitation or reuse of the buildings

would have to presume only slight interior modifications to the

units due to their reinforced concrete construction". Further,

that consultant specifically recommended that the PHA not

demolish the high-rises at Hartford Park due to the unmet need

for subsidized units in Providence.

27. On or about September 10, 1987 the HUD Field Office

informed the PHA that funds in the amount of $16,700,000 were

reserved for 508 units of public housing at Hartford Park under

the Major Reconstruction of Obsolete Projects (MROP) program, a

component of CIAP. See Appendix at 189-192. On or about

November 5, 1987, an amendment to the PHA's annual contribution

contract, providing $16,700,000 for modernization purposes, was

executed by th& PHA and HUD. Sfifi Appendix at 193.

28. The PHA Board of Commissioners met on September 24,

1987 and approved Resolution No. 3672. By this resolution, the

PHA Board of Commissioners approved the PHA's application to

demolish three high-rise buildings at Hartford ParJc, but forbade

the PHA from commencing demolition of these buildings until the

12



PHA "has received any and all n·c···ary funding and approval to

commence construction of an equivalent number of new, scattered

site, replacement units." SSÄ Appendix at 194.

29. The PHA submitted an application to HUD for approval to

demolish three high-rise buildings at Hartford Park on September

29, 1987. See Appendix at 196-231. Reversing its earlier

position, the PHA stated that it "determined that a comprehensive

program of modernization can not assure the long term viability

of thre· of the Project's high-rise structures, 12 Bodell Avenue

. . . 22 Whelan Road . . . and 375 Hartford Avenue." See

Appendix at 199. The PHA justified the request for demolition

on the grounds that "the three high-rise buildings are obsolete

as to physical condition and other factors making them unusable

for public housing purposes", citing 24 C.F.R. §970.6(a). See

Appendix at 199. Further, the PHA stated that "no reasonable

program of modifications . . . is (sic) feasible to return these

portions of the project to useful life1*, citing 24 C.F.R.

§§97O.6(b) and 968. Id. Further, the PHA stated that "the

demolition of only parts of Hartford Park will help assure the

useful life of the remaining portions of the project (i.e. it

will reduc· project density and substantially reduce the

project's overall vacancy rate).1* See Appendix at 200.

30. On or about November 27, 1987 the HUD Field Office made

a written reply to the demolition application submitted by the

PHA on September 29, 1987. S33. Appendix at 232-34. The HUD

Field Office determined that the application did not meet the

13



requirements of 24 C.F.R. 1970 and the HUD Handbook.

Specifically, the HUD Field Office noted that:

a. Th· PHA·s statement justifying demolition was

"inadequate11, and that the only "possible" demolition

criteria set forth in 24 C.F.R. §970.6 that the proposal

falls under is 24 C.F.R. §970.6(e) (Note; In that there is

no such section, HUD probably meant §970.6(c), relating to

assuring useful life of the project);

b. The PHA's comments on relocation were not "specific or

adequate", and questioned "(w)here are the (relocated)

tenants going?";

c. The PHA's description of tenant consultation "doe· not

appear" to meet the requirements of 24 C.F.R. §970 and the

HUD Handbook; and

d. Several other HUD Handbook requirements were "not

met".

Further, HUD questioned the rationale cited and the soundne·· of

the conclusions of the PHA relating to the obsolescence of the

Hartford Park high-rises.

31. The PHA submitted a revised application for demolition

of the Hartford Park high-rises on January 20, 1988 "to assure

that all applicable requirements (of the Code of Federal

Regulations and the Handbook) have been addressed." Sâa Appendix

at 235-294. Regarding demolition criteria, the PHA justified the

proposed demolition of the high-rises on the grounds that:

a. High-rise structures are vastly inappropriate for

14



b· Th· resulting conditions have and will place an

immense financial burden on the PHA, noting that the cost of

renovating the high-rise units are substantially higher than

the low rise units;

c. The height of the buildings themselves and the

density of the buildings lead tenants to choose low rise

units, thus causing high vacancy rates;

d. "Tenant discontent** resulting from poverty and

resentment of the physical environment at Hartford Park has

lead to "excessive deterioration** of the high-rises;

e. Demolition of the high-rises would help assure the

useful life of Hartford Park by removing a "detrimental

catalyst" to the quality of life for the remaining 5OS

households.

f. "In accordance with 24 C.F.R. 970" no reasonable

program of modernization is feasible to return the high-ri·e

towers to useful life.

32. The revised demolition application submitted by the PHA

addressed the relocation of tenants displaced by the demolition

of the high-rises, stating that the 32 single person households

to be displaced by demolition would be "housed temporarily in

the remaining high-rise comprised of all one bedroom apartments",

and the remaining 6 family households that would be displaced

"can also be relocated to any of the remaining 30 vacant units at

Hartford Park."

15



33. The revised application contained a section entitled

"Evaluation' of Tenant Comments" regarding the issue of tenant

participation. Included in this section was a memorandum from

the PHA·s Executive Director to the PHA Board of Commissioners

dated September 24, 1987 regarding the demolition of 240 units at

Hartford Park, as well as excerpts from the PHA Board of

Commissioners meetings of June 3, 1987 and September 24, 1987.

34. The September 24th memorandum notes that the PHA

received responses to the advertisement seeking proposals for the

use of the Hartford Park high-rises from plaintiff and from the

Hartford Park Tenant Association. The memorandum notes that

plaintiff's suggestion to use the high-rises for public housing

was "rejected due to management and security problems inherent

with high-rise structures". Moreover, regarding the proposal

submitted by the Hartford Park Tenants Association the memorandum

states "(s)ince the PHA was seeking proposals for disposition of

the towers, the Tenant Association's proposal does not comply

with our request for proposals."

35. The minutes of June 3, 1987 and September 24, 1987 do

not reveal any consideration of any comments or proposals of

plaintiff or the Hartford Park Tenants Association on the

proposed demolition. There was no additional opportunity given

to plaintiff or any other group to either comment or participate

in any discussions regarding the future of the Hartford Park

High-rises after July of 1987.

36. The PHA included in its revised demolition application

16



a "Ti«· Table for Demolition and Replacement Housing", indicating

that a demolition contract would not b· awarded until January 26,

1990, aft«r construction of th· replacement units was completed

and closed out.

37. The PHA included in its revised demolition application

a letter from Mayor Joseph R. Paolino, Jr. of the City of

Providence to the PHA dated January 11, 1988. See Appendix at

289-90. The letter stated that the PHA·s proposal to demolish

the high-rises was "in conformity with the City of Providence's

Housing Assistance Plan". ("HAP"). The letter, did not, however,

specify the number and type of units (i.e. family vs. elderly

units) that were to be demolished at Hartford Park.

38. The proposed demolition of the high-rises does not

conform to the City of Providence's HAP. The HAP in effect at

the time of the January 11, 1988 letter contained a provision

regarding demolition of residential structures, which reads:

The City of Providence is committed to a general policy
of not allowing the demolition of residential structures
that are occupied or occupiable by low and moderate income
families. . . Demolition is only allowed if a property is
so structurally damaged that it presents a clear and present
danger to the surrounding neighborhood.

See Appendix at 300.

39. On January 28, 1988 the HUD Field Office recommended

to John Mongan, the HUD Regional Administrator, that the PHA's

application to demolish the Hartford ParJc high-rises be approved.

See Appendix at 310. Approval was recommended subject to the

submission of a Board resolution and the signature of legal

counsel on his letter included in the revised demolition

17



application package.

40. On January 29, 1988 Mongan requested approval of the

PHA's demolition application from James E. Baugh, General Deputy

Assistant Secretary for Public and Indian Housing. See Appendix

at 311. This request included a finding by the Regional

Administrator that the demolition was "in compliance with 24 CFR

970 (and) with the notations made by the Providence Field Office

memorandum dated January 28, 1988."

41. According to a memorandum dated February 9, 1988 from

the HUD Field Office to the Regional Administrator, additional

information that was requested by Mr. Byers regarding the

demolition application was forwarded to HUD Headquarters in

Washington, D.C. on February 4, 1988. See Appendix at 312-328.

This information included an environmental assessment dated

February 4, 1988, PHA Board Resolution No. 3684 dated February 4,

1988 passed by telephone poll, signed PHA Counsel Opinion, site

layout and flood rate insurance map.

42. The Environmental Assessment prepared by HUD regarding

the demolition of the Hartford Park high-rises and completed on

February 4, 1988 contained a finding of no significant impact

(FONSI). See Appendix at 316. Th· FONSI was incorrect, as the

FONSI wa· M d e without any explanation why the proposed

demolition of the Hartford Park High-rises would not have a

significant effect on the human environment. HUD should have

prepared an environmental impact statement on the proposed

demolition of the high-rises, as HUD's approval of the demolition

18



application was a major federal action

th· envir©im·nt.

43. Th· Environmental Assessment and FONSI prepared by HUD

also failed to discuss and take into account several significant

environmental effects including:

a. The long and short term impacts on the supply of

low income public housing for families in Providence and

surrounding cities and towns caused by the demolition of the

Hartford Park high-rises;

b. The impact of man-made hazards and nuisances

caused by the demolition of the Hartford Park high-rises on

the tenants of Hartford Park not displaced by modernization

activities and the environment at large (e.g. asbestos and

PCB removal).

44. The Environmental Assessment completed on February 4,

1988 stated there were no unresolved conflicts concerning

alternative uses of available resources under Section 102 (E) of

the National Environmental Policy Act. Further the Environmental

Assessment did not list or discuss any alternatives to the

proposed demolition of the Hartford Park high-rises.

45. A HUD Environmental Clearance Officer did not review

and concur with the Environmental Assessment completed on

February 4, 1988. Furthermore, the EA prepared by HUD was

defective because HUD failed to:

a. incorporate the scattered site plan in the EA;

b. begin the NEPA process until a few days before the

19



daaolition application was approved;

C· involve Plaintiff in th· preparation of the EA and

notify Plaintiff of the availablility of the FONSI.

46. At approximately 4:30 p.m. on February 4, 1988, Baugh,

HUD General Deputy Assistant Secretary for.Public and Indian

Housing informed the HUD Regional Administrator that the PHA's

demolition application was approved. See Appendix at 329. in

approving the application Baugh found that the application was

consistent with "Departmental policy, the public housing

demolition/disposition regulation, 24 C.F.R. part 970 and Section

18 of the U.S. Housing Act of 1937,, as amended" (42 U.S.C.

§l437p). Further, Baugh noted that the demolition request "meets

the requirements of Section l8(a)(l) of the Act and Section

970.6(c) of the regulations in that the partial demolition of the

units will reduce the project density and thereby assure th·

useful life of the remaining portion of the project." Baugh also

noted that the PHA "has submitted evidence of tenant

participation indicating some tenant support for partial

demolition", and that "the PHA did indicate how its proposal Joes

agree with a portion of the (Hartford Park) tenants1 proposal.-

Finally, Baugh found that the demolition proposal conforms to the

City of Providence's Housing Assistance Plan and that the

Environmental Assessment resulted in a finding of no significant

impact.

47. Plaintiff's never had the opportunity to review or

comment on the Environmental Assessment or the FONSI before HUD

20



approved th· demolition of the Hartford Park high-rises.

48. Th· Environmental Assessment was not a good faith

consideration of the environmental impacts of the demolition of

Hartford Park, given that the Environmental Assessment was based

on a site review of the Hartford Park site conducted on February

3, 1988 and the assessment was prepared and completed on the date

the project was approved by HUD, February 4, 1988.

49. On February 5, 1988 The HUD Field Office was still

completing the environmental assessment that had been

"completed" on February 4th. On that day the HUD Field Office

sent a letter to the Rhode Island Historical Preservation

Commission seeking comments on the proposed demolition. See

Appendix at 3 30. The environmental assessment indicated that

comments from the Historical Preservation Commission had been

requested. Comments from the Historical Preservation Commission

were not sent back to the HUD Field Office until February 19,

1988.

50. Subsequent to February 5, 1988 HUD still had to provide

the PHA with assistance to demolish the high-rises, including

transferring the funds "reserved" to demolish the high-rises and

construct the replacement units on scattered sites.

51. On February 11, 1988 Baugh's memorandum to Mongan

approving the PHA's demolition request was transmitted to the HUD

Field Office.

52. Both the application for demolition submitted to HUD by

the PHA on September 29, 1987 and the revised demolition
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application dated January, 1988 and approved by HUD fail to meet

the applicable requirements especially relating to permitted

demolition criteria, tenant participation, tenant relocation and

one for one replacement of demolished units.

53. HUD failed to follow the required application

processing procedures when it processed the PHA's application to

demolish the Hartford Park high-rises, especially environmental

review procedures and insuring the PHA's application met the

applicable requirements referred in paragraph 40, supra.

54. The PHA plans to demolish the Hartford Park high-rises

on or about April 24, 1989, and has already begun work to prepare

the buildings for demolition, despite the fact that some tenants

remain. The PHA plans to proceed with the demolition even though

the PHA has not determined the location of the sites for

constructing the replacement units and HUD has not approved the

location for constructing replacement units. This new demolition

schedule contradicts the demolition and construction schedule set

forth in the revised demolition applications submitted to and

approved by HUD, which states that the demolition contract would

not be awarded until January 26, 1990, after construction ai £üs

replacement units was completed and closed out. Furthermore,

this plan is inconsistent with PHA Resolution Number 3672 which

prohibits th· PHA from commencing demolition of these buildings

until the PHA '•has received any and all necessary funding and

approval to commence construction of an equivalent number of new,

scattered site, replacement units."
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THE "SCATTERED SITE" PLAN

55. On or about April 2, 1987 the Providence city Council

voted to authorize the PHA to submit an application for a

preliminary loan for surveys and planning in connection with 3 60

units of low rent public housing. See Appendix at 81, 97.

56. The PHA submitted to HUD on April 10, 1987 an

application for development of 360 units of public housing to be

built on sites scattered throughout the City of Providence, see

Appendix at 81. Attached to that application was a letter from

Providence Mayor Joseph R. Paolino Jr. (Paolino) indicating his

support for the application and the proposal to demolish the

high-rise structures at Hartford Park. Paolino stated:

The development of 360 new units of public housing will
support the City's efforts to upgrade various neighborhoods
in conformity with Providence's Housing Assistance Plan.
The City of Providence has committed substantial resources
to the revitalization of its neighborhoods. Our Department
of Planning and Development will coordinate the City's
Vacant Lot Program with your development effort.

Id. at

57. Th%.PHA's application for 360 units was reviewed by a,

number of Divisions within HUD, including the Division of Fair

Housing/Equa½» Opportunity <FHlø) . According to HUD·s "Public*

Housing and Development Handbook11/ paragraph 4-24, Handbook

7417.1 Rev-1 (October, 1980) the FHEO Director "must determine

that the PHA is complying with all civil rights and equal-

opportunity requirements" in ord·r to recommend approval.

Further, in making this determination, the Handbook states that
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'iconsideration is given to the PHA's past performance in

selecting site· that provided housing opportunities outside areas

of minority concentration . . . " Sfifi Appendix at 334, 335.

58. The Regional division of Fair Housing/Equal Opportunity

expressed reservations about the PHA's application. On May 11,

1987 a memorandum from the HUD Regional Office by Jeanne

McHallam, Acting Director of the Program Operations Division,

1E0, was sent to the Manager of the Providence HUD office

regarding the PHA's application for 360 units of public housing.

See Appendix at 336. The memorandum indicated that approval by

the Regional Office of this application was being deferred,

pending HUD Headquarters' action on a preliminary determination

made by the HUD Regional Office that the PHA was in non-

compliance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964.

59. On or about September 30, 1987 HUD acted on the PHA··

application for 360 units of public housing dated April 10, I9·7.

HUD decided to fund the development of 184 units for "replacement

housing due to the proposed demolition of public housing units in

the Hartford Park area*, and reserved $44*53̂ >,ā 3̀ ·Z for

constructing these units« See Appendix at 337.

60. In response to HUD·s approval of 184 units, the PHA

circulated a request for proposals to the public soliciting

proposals from developers to construct some or all of these

units. By the end of April, 1988 the PHA received proposal* from

five developers to construct a total of 395 units on 159 sites

See Appendix at 3 39.
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61. Th· staff of th· PHA proceeded to evaluat· th· proposed

sites, and either accepted or rejected the sites. A list of the

89 accepted sites for construction of these units was developed.

Appendix at 340-45. A list of the 70 rejected sites was also

prepared. Appendix at 346-48. A map of all census tracts in the

City of Providence with a breakdown of the number of accepted

proposed sites per census tract is also set forth in the Appendix

at 349.

62. The accepted proposed sites were in the following

census tracts: l-7, inclusive, (Washington Park, Elmwood, Upper

South Providence and Lower South Providence neighborhoods), 12

and 14 (West End neighborhood), 22 (Valley neighborhood) and 2ft

(Smith Hill neighborhood). There were no proposed sites accepted

in the following census tracts: 8-11,inclusive, (Downtown and

Federal Hill neighborhoods), 13 (Armory District), 15-21,

inclusive, (Reservoir, Silver Lake, Hartford, Olneyville, M*nton

and Mount Pleasant neighborhoods), 23-25, inclusive (Elmhurst and

Smith Hill neighborhoods) and 27-37 (Wanskuck, North End, Mount

Hope, Hope, Blackstone, Wayland, College Hill and Fox Point

neighborhoods).

63. The PHA staff rejected proposed sites in the following

neighborhoods in which no proposed sites were approved:

Olneyville and Downtown.

64. On or about June 24, 1988, the scattered site plan

recommended by the PHA staff was sent to PHA Board. On or about

July 7, 1988 the PHA board approved the construction of 15 2 units
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on 73 sites. Th· 73 sites were located in the following

neighborhoods: Elmwood, Upper South Providence, Lower South

Providence*, the West End, Valley, Smith Hill and Washington Park.

See Appendix at 350-51.

65. On or about July 20, 1988 the PHA submitted an

application for the development of 56 units of scattered site

public housing to replace demolished units at Hartford Park. See

Appendix at 352-370.

66. On or about August 4, 1988, the Providence City Council

voted against rescinding the scattered site plan approved by the

PHA Board of Commissioners on or about July 7, 1988. The vote

was 4 to 7, with one abstention. Only those councilpersons from

Elmwood, Upper South Providence, Lower South Providence,

Washington Park and the West End voted in favor of rescinding the

plan.

67. The PHA'3 application for 56 units was reviewed by a

number of Divisions within HUD, including the Division of Fair

Housing/Equal Opportunity (FHEQ). On August 19, 1988, a

memorandum was sent to the Providence HUD office from Benjamin w.

Little, Director, Program operations Division 1EO, stating that

there was "insufficient information for FHEO to recommend

approval* of the application. S_fifi Appendix at 371. The

memorandum also quoted the section of HUD Handbook 7417.1 Rev-1

quoted in paragraph 57, supra.

68. On September 8, 1988, a second memorandum was sent by

Little to the Providence HUD office indicating FHEO·s conditional
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approval of th· PHA·s application. Sea Appendix at 372. Th·

memoranda*stated that "approval of this application is

conditional that areas of non-minority concentration are,

utilized1*. Attached to the memorandum was a list of

neighborhoods with 0-19% minority concentration. A copy of this

review was sent to the PHA by the Providence HUD office on or

about October 26, 1988. See Appendix at 372-73.

69. On or about September 28, 1988, HUD approved the PHA's

application for 56 units and reserved funds in the amount of

$4,762,800. Sss Appendix at 374.

70. On or about December 12, 1988, the PHA announced a n·w

"scattered site" plan. Under this new plan 32 replacement units

were to be moved out of the Upper South Providence and West End

neighborhoods and distributed in other neighborhoods, of these

3 2 units, 2 2 units were to be located in the following

neighborhoods, none of which were previously designated to

receive replacement units: Federal Hill, Manton, Olneyville, and

WansJcucJc. See Appendix at 375-76.

71. Neither HUD nor the City of Providence has approved

the sites for the location of either the 184 or 56 units of

scattered site public housing. In fact, the PHA does not even

know wher· all of the sites for the 240 replacement units will be

located, and, thus cannot )cnow when the replacement units will be

completed and readied for occupancy.

72. The lack of a balanc·d distribution of th· scattered

sites, and the small number of proposed sites in many
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neighborhoods will contribute to th· loss of op·n housing'

opportunities in these neighborhoods for lower income anóV

minority faailies. The PHA'a scattered site plan will have a

disparate impact on minorities in two ways: (1) it will

restrict choice and restrict open housing opportunities for those

families on the PHA's waiting list, who are disproportionately

minority, and (2) it will contribute to the resegregation and

loss of diversity in the Hartford Park neighborhood (losing 240

family units) and other neighborhoods which do not have a

proportionate share of public housing,

73. The PHA, in January, 1939, expressly declined to seek a

wider choice of sites by inviting the participation of six

neighboring communities, participation which the PHA could have

at least attempted pursuant to R.I.G.L. §45-25-22. The six

communities, identified in a request by the Project B.A.S.I.C.

Tenants Union in December of 1988, are Warwick, Cranston,

Johnston, North Providence, East Providence, and Barrington.

74. The PHA has an affirmative obligation to promote,

greater open housing opportunitites, based on Title VIII of the

Civil Rights Act Of 1968, 42 U.S.C. §3608.

75. The PHA has knowingly declined to pursue sites in

certain neighborhoods which have little or no subsidized housing,

even though such sites were submitted to the PHA as potential

scattered-site development lots.

76. Th· PHA has indicated that it may not actively obtain

sites for all the replacement units, in light of th· difficulty
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it has experienced thus far in locating sites'.

77, TV© city council members ar· on the PHA's Board of

Comnission·rs. As of July, 1988, none of the tentatively

approved sites for 152 units were in their wards (Ward 3 and 7) .

The December, 1988, revised plan did not contain significant

amendments on this issue, with 148 of the 184 units still being

in South Providence, the West End and Elmwood.

have transferred lots for the development of home ownership

programs and have

owners. However, as of*~««rtïh-r"l9«9, the City and the PRA have

transferred few lots to the PHA for the scattered site public-

housing units:

79. .The city has rejected suggestions that it financially

assist the PHA in acquiring sites in those neighborhoods which-

currently have little or no low income housing,

80. HUD's public housing cost containment restrictions

contribute to the lack of sites in many neighborhoods. HUD has

been aware of the Title VIII issues raised by the scattered site

program for over a year. Among other avenues of learning of the

lack of open housing opportunity, HUD received a specific written

statement from plaintiff's attorney in April of l988f. HUD was

also put on notice that the Urban League of Rhode Island issued

a report in 1988 which found that housing segregation is "more of

a reality today that it was in 1970,n with minorities grouped in

the central cities of Providence, Pawtucket, Woonsocket, and
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Central Falls.

THE SHELTER

81. Pro-CAP intended to develop a shelter for the homeless

at 521 Broad Street, Providence, in an area experiencing

gentrification pressures. Pro-CAP entered into a purchase and

sale contract to purchase the Broad Street property in June,

1988.

82. The City exerts significant influence over Pro-CAP

decisions, with overlap between City officials and the Pro-CAP

Board.

83. Due to neighborhood opposition, based at least In part

on the income and race of prospective sh·lter residents, Pro-CAP

and the City decided to cancel the plan to develop the Broad

Street shelter. The Mayor acknowledged that they were using a

technicality to get out of the contract.

84. The City, the PRA and the PHA then proceeded to select

land in the middle of the Hartford Park development including

part of the Laurel Hill Park playground for the shelter.

Hartford Park is the same public housing project where the PHA

has decided to demolish 240 units in order to reduce density.

85. Th· PRA has acknowledged that the Broad Street site was

preferable based on location, transportation and planned acc·ss

to other social services for the homeless.

86. The proposed shelter at Hartford Par* will occupy 60%

of the site of the existing playground.
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87. Th· City, Pro-CAP and th· PHA have based th·ir

decisions on th· shelter, in part, on th· opposition of other

neighborhoods to a proposed shelter due to th· rac· and income of'

prospectiv· shelter residents. Their decision to locate the

shelter within Hartford Park, despite the contradiction with

their own arguments on density and related problems is based, in

part on the largely minority tenant population of Hartford Park

and its relatively less powerful constituency.

88. The non-federal defendants caused at least a one year

delay in the availability of the badly needed shelter, and

sacrificed available operating funds ($200,000) from the State's

Department of Human Services. The shelter, originally to be

operating for the winter of 1988-89, now may not even be

available for the following winter.

89. HUD is aware of the proposed shelter plan for Hartford

Park and is aware that the non-federal defendants' actions

contradict the PHA's position that the demolition of the high-

rises will reduce project density and reduce the concentration of

families experiencing social and economic difficulty.

90. HUD is also aware of the wider context of the problem

in that a $454,120 grant was returned in 1988 to HUD by the

Traveler** Aid Society, after that agency encountered fierce

neighborhood opposition to a proposed homeless shelter in both

the North End and Mount Hope neighborhoods of Providence.

91. The defendants' actions in regard to the shelter, the

demolition and the related scattered* sit* devwlopnent have all

31



contributed, and continue to contribute to the lack of affordable

open housing throughout the City of Providence and surrounding

metropolitan area, as demonstrated by the 941 households

presently on the waiting list for public housing in Providence.

SâS Appendix at 378-79. Further, these same actions have

fostered continued racial opposition to low income housing in

certain areas, and have directly harmed the efforts of plaintiff

to make available a greater supply, and a greater range of

choice, in the affordable housing stock.

CAUSES OF ACTION

A. THE HUD DEFENDANTS

92. In approving the demolition and scattered site plan,

the HUD defendants' actions are arbitrary, capricious and

contrary to the U.S. Housing Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §l437p,

both in its present form and as it existed prior to the Housing

and Community Development Act amendments of 1987, the applicable

regulations at 24 C.F.R. §970 and the requirements set out in

the Public Housing Demolition, Disposition and Conversion

Handbook, 7486.1, (Oct. 24, 1986) ("HUD Handbook"). Plaintiff

seeks review of HUD·s actions pursuant to the Administrative

Procedure Act (APA), 5 U.S.C. §701 et seq.

93. HUD·s actions and inactions with regards to the

proposed demolition and scattered site plans fail to satisfy

HUD·s obligations to affirmatively promote open housing
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opportunity as required by the Fair Housing Act, 42 U.s.c. S36O8.

HUÐ's actions and inactions are reviewable pursuant to the APA, 5

U.S.C. §701 •t seq.

94. HUD's failure to prepare an environmental assessment

with the review and concurrence of the HUD environmental

clearance officer was unreasonable, arbitrary, capricious, an

abuse of discretion, and contrary to HUD regulations and

procedures implementing the National Environmental Policy Act

(NEPA), at 24 C.F.R. §50.32 and HUD Handbook 7486.1 §2-5(a)(2)

(Oct. 24, 1986), reviewable pursuant to the APA, 5 U.S.C. §701 et

seq.

95. HUD·s Finding of No Significant Impact (FONSI) and

HUD's decision not to prepare an Environmental Impact Statement

were unreasonable, arbitrary, capricious an abuse of discretion,

and contrary to Section 102 of the National Environmental Policy

Act, 42 U.S.C. §4332, reviewable pursuant to the APA, 5 U.S.C.

§701 et seq.

96. HUD·s failure to include the environmental impacts of

the scattered site plan in, its Environmental Assessment was

unreasonable, arbitrary, capricious, an abuse of discretion, and

contrary to th· regulations of both HUD and the Council on

Environmental Quality, 24 C.F.R. §5O.l(b), 24 C.F.R. §5O.2l(a),

40 C.F.R. S1508.7, and NEPA, reviewable pursuant to the APA, 5

U.S.C. §701 et seq.

97. HUD's failure to involve plaintiff in the preparation

of the Environmental Assessment, and subsequent failure to make
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its FONSI available to plaintiff prior to approving th·

demolition of th· Hartford Park high-rises was unreasonable,

arbitrary, capricious, an abuse of discretion and contrary to the

regulations of both HUD and the Council on Environmental

Quality, implementing NEPA, 24 C.F.R. §5O.l(b), 40 C.F.R.

§1501.4, and NEPA, reviewable pursuant to the APA, 5 U.s.c. §701

et seq.

98. HUD's failure to study, develop and describe

alternatives to the demolition of the Hartford Par* high-ri·es,

particularly in light of plaintiff's comments on the proposed

demolition violated 42 U.S.C. §l437p and Section 102(2)(E) of the

National Environmental Policy Act, 42 U.S.C. §4332(E).

99. HUD'S actions and inactions in regards to the

demolition and scattered site plan, particularly in the plan's

impact on minority rights under the Fair Housing Act, as set

forth above, give rise to plaintiff's cause of action under the

Fair Housing Act, 42 U.S.C. $3601 et seq., for the relief

available to pursuant to the APA, plus the legal fees and costs

available pursuant to 42 U.S.C. §3601 et seq.

B. THE PHA DEFENDANTS

100. The PHA·s actions and failures to act, described,

supra, in relation to the proposed demolition of the Hartford

Park high-rises, are violative of the U.S. Housing Act, 42 U.S.C.

§l4 37p, in both its current amended version and its pre-amendaent

version, giving rise to plaintiff's cause of action under §l4
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directly and und·r that statute and 42 U.S.C. §1983.

101—The* PHA's actions and failures to act, regarding the

demolition and scattered site plan, and the proposed shelter,

violate plaintiff's rights guaranteed by the Fair Housing Act, 42 -

U.S.C. §3601 et seq., under both the intent standard and the

disparate effects standard, as well as the Equal Protection and

Due Process clauses of the Fourteenth Amendment to the United

States Constitution, giving rise to plaintiff's cause of action

under both Title VIII, 42 U.S.C. §3601 et seq., and 42 U.S.C.

§1983.

102. The PHA's actions and failures to act, regarding th·

demolition and scattered site plan, and the proposed shelter,

violate plaintiff's rights under Title VI of the Civil Rights Act

of 1964, 42 U.S.C. §2OOOd, with its implementing regulations, 24

C.F.R. §l;4(b)(2), in light of the fact the PHA has ¤aí cho»·n

the least discriminatory alternative. Plaintiff's claim und·r

Title VI is based on both the intent standard and the disparate

effects standard*

103. The PHA·s actions in talcing steps to demolish Hartford

Park units in advance of the PHA's own resolution authorizing

such demolition is ultra vires and denies to plaintiff the iue

process of the law guaranteed by the Fifth and Fourteenth

amendments to the United States Constitution, giving rise to

plaintiff's cause of action under 42 U.S.C. §1983.
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C. THE CITY OF PROVIDgMC¾ fCity)

104. The>City of Providence (City), through its own offic··

and through it· involvement with th· PHA and Pro-CAP, has failed

to affirmatively promote open housing throughout the entire city,

in relation to the demolition and scattered site plan, and

shelter plan, in violation of its affirmative duty under Title

VIII and under the Housing and Community Development Act (CDBG

Program), giving rise to plaintiff's cause of action under 42

U.S.C. §3601 et seq. and under §1983.

105. The City of Providence (City), through its own offices

and through its involvement with the PHA and Pro-CAP, has

discriminated on the basis of race, under an intent standard and

a disparate effects standard, in its actions and inactions with

regard to the demolition/scattered site plan and the decisions

regarding the shelter, all in violation of Title VI of the Civil

Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. §2OOOd, giving rise to plaintiff•s

cause of action under Title VI and under 42 U.S.C. §1983.

106. The city of Providence (City), through its own

offices and through its involvement with the PHA and Pro-CAP, has

discriminated on the basis of race in relation to the

demolition/scattered site plan and the shelter plans, knowingly

and intentionally, in violation of plaintiff's rights under the

Equal Protection and Due Process clauses of the United States

Constitution, giving rise to plaintiff's cause of action under 42

U.S.C. §1983.
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D. PRO-CAP

107- Defendant Pro-CAP, by allowing community and political

opposition to th· prosp«ctiv· residents of its proposed -shelter

to in part guide its decision to change the shelter's location

from Broad Street to Hartford Park, and to delay the opening of

the shelter, has violated plaintiff's rights under the Fair

Housing Act of 1968, 42 U.S.C. §3601 et seq.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff requests that this Court:

1.) assume jurisdiction over this matter;

2.) issue such temporary and preliminary relief as

specifically requested by motion by the plaintiff;

3.) enjoin HUD and the PHA to take no further steps towards

demolition of the Hartford Park high-rises until and

unless they have satisfied all statutory requirements

under the U.S. Housing Act, 42 U.S.C. §l437p;

4.) enjoin HUD and the PHA to commence the rehabilitation

and the rent-up of the unoccupied units at Hartford

Park, particularly those in the high-rises;

5.) enjoin HUD and the PHA to provide ongoing and adequate

maintenance, management and security staffing at the

high-rises so as to maintain their habitability;

6.) enjoin the City and the PHA to develop a revised

scattered site housing plan which will result in open

housing opportunities throughout the City, including

all neighborhoods;
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7.) enjoin th· PHA to r·qu··t cooperation agreements from

th· six communities suggested by plaintiff, for

assistance in siting the scattered site units;

8.) enjoin HUD to complete both a full environmental

assessment and an environmental impact statement on the

demolition and scattered site plan prior to carrying

out further steps at the current plan, including the

advancing of HUD funds and authorizations;

9.) enjoin the PHA and HUD to fully consider and

investigate all reasonable alternatives to demolition

and all reasonable alternatives to the present

scattered site plan, to involve plaintiff in all stages

of said consideration and investigation, and to develop

an administrative record which fully reviews all such

alternatives, prior to taking further steps towards

carrying out the current demolition and scattered site

plan;

10.) enjoin the PHA to rescind its current eviction notices

served on tenants occupying units scheduled for

demolition, and to provide full services, maintenance

and security to such tenants, and to cease its efforts

to cause the constructive demolition of Hartford Park

through evictions and a policy of not filling

vacancies;

11.) enjoin Pro-CAP to rescind its decision on siting the

shelter at Hartford Park and to locate and develop the
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shelter either on the original Broad Street site or on

sorn· other site in the City, which is suitable in terms

of transportation and services, and which promotes open

housing opportunities throughout the City;

12.) enjoin the non-federal defendants to restore the

forfeited shelter funding, lost through delays caused

by their opposition to the original plan;

13.) award damages to the plaintiff, costs and fees pursuant

to 42 U.S.C. §3601 et seq. and 42 U.S.C. §1988; and

14.) award such other relief as this Court deems just and

appropriate.

Respectfully Submitted,

PROJECT B.A.S.I.C.

By its Attorneys

"Steven FischbacñN^
Rhode Island Legal Services
77 Dorranee Street
Providence, R. I. 02903
(401)-274-2652
(401)-421-6993

John W. Oineen
Rhode Island Legal Services
Stadium Building, Room 202
Monument Square
Woonsocket, R. I. 02895
(401)-765-7900
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